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REPLY TO UNRESOLVED ITEM 92027-01 

Unresolved Item 

A Notice of Violation (NOV 91017) issued on November 14, 1991 identified two 
violations for: (a) failure to establish adequate written pro~edures or 
instructions to ensure that the containment spray pump, and similarly the high 
pressure safety injection pump, were verified operable; and (b) operation of 

·the reactor at power while containment spray pump P-54C was inoperable without 
complying with the applicable technical specification. Consumers Power 
Company's (CPCo) reply to NOV 91017, dated December 9, 1991, provided our 
original response to the NOV. In the NOV response CPCo committed to add local 
and remote indication of control power for 2400/4160 volt safety related 
breakers during the 1992 refueling outage and the same indication for non
safety related 2400/4160 volt breakers during the 1993 refueling outage. Our 
December 9, 1991 letter was updated on December 13, 1991 to correct format 
errors as well as revise a portion of our response to more clearly explain the 
root cause of the violation and associated corrective actions. The 
December 9, 1991 letter was later identified as an example of a 10CFR50.9 
violation in NOV 91026, dated January 23, 1992. · 

On November 6, 1992 CPCo updated a commitment from our response to NOV 91017. 
The November 6, 1992 letter stated that the modification to add local and 
remote indication for all of the safety related 2400/4160 volt circuit 
breakers had been completed. On November 24, 1992, CPCo corrected the · 
November 6, 1992 letter by stating that the modification to provide remote 
indication had not been completed, for two breakers for the "A" and "C" 
auxiliary feedwater pump, because of time constraints during the 1992 
refueling outage. The letter stated that the modification would be completed 
during the 1993 refueling outage. The modifications to provide local - · 
indication for the two breakers for the "A" and "C" auxiliary feedwater pump 
were completed during the 1992 refueling outage. 

Because of previous misleading or incorrect information being provided to the· 
NRC, the incorrect information in our November 6, 1992 letter is considered as 
an unresolved item for which a reply is provided below. 

As can be seen by the chronological sequence that follows, it is apparent that 
engineering personnel knew by the time of our December 9, 1991 NOV 91017 
response, that we might not include the remote indication for the "Arr and "C" 
auxiliary feedwater pump breakers during the modifications in the 1992 
refueling outage. However, engineering management approval of this variance 
in the 1992 refueling outage scope was not made until January 23, 1992. 
During the preparation of the December 9, 1991 response, engineering personnel 
did not comment on the accuracy of the NOV response because they believed that 
our overall commitment was to complete modifications on all the 2400/4160 volt 
breakers by the end of the 1993 refueling outage. The engineering 
department's main concern was to provide a design which met our technical and 
quality requirements and to implement that design within their available 



resources. They determined this could be accomplished by: completing the 
remote and local indication modification~ for 27 of the 29 solenoid-operated 
breakers on buses IA, IB, IC, and ID; providing local indication on the 
remaining two auxiliary feedwater pump breakers during the I992 refueling 
outage; and completing the remote indication of the auxiliary feedwater pump 
breakers in the I993 refueling outage along with the remaining breaker 
indication modifications on the remaining 2400/4I60 volt buses. 

The corrective action to complete the modifications in the I992 refueling 
outage was initiated in September I99I and the refueling outage was scheduled 
to begin in February I992. The additional work scope necessary for the 
remote i ndi cation of the auxiliary feedwater pump .breakers was not i dent ifi ed 
until after the design process began. Due to time and resource constraints, 
engineering determined it prudent to delay the installation of the remote 
indication until the I993 refueling outage in order to ensure the overall 
quality of all the related modifications. In addition the operations 
department was satisfied, for the interim, with providing local indication 
only for the 11A11 and 11 C11 auxiliary feedwater pump breakers .. 

Chronological Sequence of Modification 

05/23/9I 

07/I0/9I 

Containment spray pump, P-54C, failed to start with actuation of 
local control switch during a Technical Specifications 
surveillance procedure. A corrective action document was 
initiated (deviation report D-PAL-91-097). 

An in-house event report (E-PAL-9I-OI7) was written following 
evaluation -of the previous deviation report. 
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07/25/91 The event report proposed corrective action was to review the 
possibility of providing indicating lights to monitor the 
availability of power to the closing coil in 2400/4160 volt 
circuit breakers. The event was determined reportable to the NRC. 

08/06/91 

08/15/91 

08/22/91 

09/09/91 

Additional corrective actions were assigned to provide remote and 
local indication of closing coil power for 2400/4I60 volt solenoid 
operated breakers supplied by Buses IA, IB, IC, and ID in the 1992 
refueling outage (RFO). Breakers on buses IE, IF, and IG were 
scheduled for I993 RFO. 

PRC review of the event (E-PAL-9I-OI7) concluded the proposed 
corrective actions were adequate. 

LER 9I-OI6 was submitted to NRC with a commitment to provide 
remote and local closing coil power indication for 2400/4I60 volt 
solenoid operated breakers for Buses IA, IB, IC, ID, IE, IF, and 
IG. No schedule was provided. 

A request for modification with proposed scope and schedule was 
initiated and approved by the Plant General Manager on 09/25/9I. 



09/II/9I 

IO/OI/9I 

I0/09/9I 

II/I4/9I 

II/2I/9I 

II/28/9I 

I2/09/9I 

I2/I3/9I 

OI/I3/92 

OI/23/92 

OI/23/92 

02/07/92 

02/I7/92 

A modification package was initiated describing the addition of 
local and remote indication for all solenoid-operated breakers 
from buses IA, IB, IC, and ID with the variance for the auxiliary 
feedwater pump breakers which were to have local indication only. 

3 

NRC Inspection Report 9IOI7 was issued with two violations related 
to P-54C failure to start during surveillance testing. 

Enforcement conference was held regarding the 05/23/9I event. 

NRC NOV and civil penalty on the 05/23/9I event {NOV 9IOI7). 

Safety review for the modification package was completed. 

NRC issued an Information Notice in which the Palisades scope and 
schedule for the modification was noted. 

CPCo response to NOV {IR 9IOI7) committed to complete the remote 
and local indication of closing coil power for safety related 
2400/4I60 volt solenoid operated breakers for Buses IA, IB, IC, 
and ID to be scheduled for installation in the I992 RFO. Breakers 
for non-safety related buses IE, IF, and IG were scheduled for 
completion in the I993 RFO. 

CPCo corrected our I2/09/9I NOV 9IOI7 response. 

The Engineering Analysis sign off, for the modification package, 
was completed. This analysis noted that the auxiliary feedwater 
pump breakers would have local indication only and remote 
indication would be added later. The addition of remote 
·indication would require installing additional cables and 
conductors, and could not be done in the I992 RFO. 

Electrical, l&C, Computer Engineering Manager approved the 
modification package which froze the work scope planned for the 
I992 RFO {i.e., the remote indication for the two auxiliary 
feedwater pump breakers was not included in the scope). 

NRC issued NOV 9I026 regarding IOCFRS0.9 violations including the 
I2/09/9I CPCo response to the NOV 9IOI7. 

Start of the I992 Refueling Outage. 

The Corrective Action documents (E-PAL-92-023 AND 92-024) for the 
IOCFR50.9 {NOV 9I026) were issued. Action is assigned to route 
the NOV and response to department managers and superintendents 
and to issue guidelines on improving quality of licensing 
submittals. 



03/06/92 

03/23/92 

04/I3/92 

04/I9/92 

04/27/92 

04/30/92 

05/I5/92 

II/06/92 

II/I6/92 

II/24/92 

I2/08/92 

CPCo response to NOV 9I026 on IOCFR50.9 was issued reiterating 
corrective actions from 02/I7/92. 
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Internal correspondence, to department managers and 
superintendents, regarding the NOV pertaining to IOCFR50.9 was 
issued emphasizing the need for complete and accurate information. 

A portion of corrective action document {E-PAL-9I-OI7 initiated 
07/I0/9I) was signed off noting the two auxiliary feedwater pump 
breakers did not have remote indication, and that the indication 
would be installed in I993 RFO. 

End of the I992 refueling outage. 

LER guideline on preparation of LERs was issued (corrective action 
to NOV 9I026). 

Violation reply guideline was issued (corrective action to NOV 
9I026). 

Modification package was signed off as complete and noted that the 
two auxiliary feedwater pump breakers remote indication was not 
installed in the I992 RFO. · 

CPCo letter to the NRC stated that modifications were complete for 
all breakers that were committed to be done in the 1992 RFO.' 

Cpco identified that our statement in our II/06/92 letter was not 
entirely correct in that the remote indication for the two 
auxiliary feedwater pump was not installed as that action was 
carried over to the I 993 RFO. · · · 

CPCo submitted a letter to the NRC correcting the 1I/06/92 
statement that all breaker modifications were completed. 

Corrective action (D-PAL-92-27I) was issued to address the 
inaccurate information in the II/06/92 submittal. 

Reason for the Inaccurate Communication in the November 6, I992 Letter 

As a result of NOV 9IOI7 CPCo initiated corrective action and an NRC 
commitment to complete modifications to add local and remote indication for 
all of the safety related 2400/4I60 volt circuit breakers for buses IA, IB, 
IC, and ID in the I992 refueling outage. In our November 6, I992 letter it 
was indicated that modifications had been completed for all the breakers 



supplied by these buses. Subsequent review identified that two breakers for 
the "A" and "C" auxiliary feedwater pump had been provided with local 
indication only. Remote indication remains to be added during the 1993 
refueling outage. Our November 6, 1992 letter was corrected by letter dated 
November 24, 1992. 
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One apparent cause for the inaccurate communication is that engineering 
personnel believed that they were still in compliance with the inhouse 
corrective action and the NRC commitment even if completion of the remote 
indication was rescheduled to be completed by the end of the 1993 refueling 
outage. Engineering personnel considered the end of the 1993 refueling outage 
to be the actual NRC commitment; with shorter term actions (e.g., planned 1992 
refueling modifications) to be interim milestones or targets. This belief 
led, in part, to a failure to identify the change in the committed action to 
the NRC during: the interim design stages; when the action in the 1992 
refueling outage was complete; and in our November 6, 1992 submittal to the 
NRC. 

Another cause of the event was an interpretation of a "due date" versus a 
"target date" that was made with respect to the NRC commitments. In our 
December 9, I99I response to the NRC NOV we stated that remote and local 
indication would be provided for breakers supplied buses IA, IB~ IC, & ID, and 
the modification was "scheduled for completion in the I992 refu~ling outage." 
Due to a misinterpretation within the Plant Safety and Licensin~ Department 
the words "scheduled for completion ... " did not communicate a commitment "due 
date." Instead it was interpreted to constitute a "target date" wherein, the 
completion date could be changed internally without identifying a change in 
commitment to the NRC. "Scheduled for completion," through this 
misinterpretation, led personnel to consider that the commitment completion 
date could vary as the schedule for the modification .varied. "Due dates" were 
considered, again as a result of the misinterpretation, as only those dates 
that were stated specifically as, fo~ example, "CPCo will complete the action 
before January I, I995 ... " These "due dates" were considered mandatory due 
dates which required notifying the NRC in the event the date would not be met. 

' 

As a result of the apparent misinterpretation of what constituted a "Due 
Date," personnel in the Plant Safety and Licensing Department agreed with the 
engineering personnel that there was more latitude in meeting the scheduled 
commitment to install the remote and local indication for the auxiliary 
feedwater pump breakers. This resulted in not notifying the NRC of our change 
in commitment, at the end of the I992 refueling outage, when the correcti.ve 
action to complete the actions for the breakers on IA, IB, IC, and ID buses 
was signed off as complete and the remaining action for the auxiliary 
feedwater pump breakers was rescheduled for the I993 refueling outage. 

Following the I992 refueling outage, further review of the work activities 
related to our I993 commitments was made. This review led to management's 
conclusion that local and remote indication for solenoid operated breakers on 
non-safety related buses IF and IG was unnecessary and therefore our previous 
commitment needed to be changed. In preparing this information for the 



November 6, 1992 submittal to the NRC, a determination was made to also 
include a status update on the commitments completed in the 1992 refueling 
outage. Therein the erroneous statement was made that "remote and local 
indication for the safety related 2400/4160 volt breakers on buses lA, 18, lC, 
and 10 was installed .... " No mention was made that the auxiliary feedwater 
pump breakers did not yet have their remote indication installed. This error 
resulted from the engineering and PS&L personnel not recognizing that the 1992 
refueling outage NRC commitment completion date was not met. But, in 
addition, a complete review of the corrective action and commitment tracking 
system was not made in order to verify the statement was correct. 

Corrective Actions for this Event 

1. Review the determination of commitment due dates and target dates with 
commitment tracking and licensing groups. 

2. Identify the event to Plant and NECO management and supervision, 
emphasizing what constitutes an NRC commitment and emphasizing the 
requirements of 10CFR50.9. 

3. Review all open NRC commitments to assure all due dates are identified as 
such and not as target dates. 

4. Prepare a guideline for the preparation of NRC submittals. 

In addition to the above corrective actions we will be discussing this issue 
when we offer our first quarter technical staff continuing training session. 

Evaluation of the Effectiveness of Corrective Action for the Previous 
10CFR50.9 Violation 

The previous corrective action related to the 10CFR50.9 violation included 
informing the managers and superintendents of the violation, our response to 
the violation, and the requirements of 10CFR50.9. The corrective action also 
included issuing guidelines for the preparation of LERs and responses to NOVs. 
These corrective actions emphasized the need for communication to be complete 
and accurate, but apparently were not as effective as originally expected in 
delivering that message. 

The situations in each of the events are different. The present unresolved 
item resulted from misinterpretation of a commitment due date and also 
resulted from an incomplete review of the corrective action and commitment 
tracking system (prior to issuing the November 6, 1992 letter). The previous 
corrective action was not directed at this specific situation and, therefore, 
was not effective in preventing it. 

We have concluded that the above proposed actions will help prevent recurrence 
of the event. 




